
3-2-2015 minutes FINAL 

CITY OF EVART 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

March 2, 2015 

  

  

The Council meeting called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Pro Tem Keysor. 

Present: Council – Dan Elliott, BJ Foster, Mayor Pro Tem Mayor Casey Keysor, Gregg 

Sherman; City Clerk – Acting City Clerk Sarah Dvoracek; City Manager – Zack Szakacs; City 

Treasurer – Sarah Dvoracek 

Absent: Mayor - Eric Schmidt 

Guests: Deb Struble, Diane Carlson, Shane Helmer, Ralph Carlson, Seraphim Bieri, Mrs. Peter 

Leemon, Shelly Kitchen, Maryann Borden, Travis Douglas, Lane Johnston, Robert Stevens, 

Michael Bieri, Loren Stieg, Jan Taylor, Patrick Muczynski, Joe Sinkler, Jim White, Rick 

Machleit, Miranda Lorenz, Ryan Douglas, Shane Douglas, Connie Douglas, Dick Douglas, 

Derek Vincent, Lonnie Graham, Neil Fiekema, Ron Woycehski, Don Tatara, James R. Holihan, 

and other members of the public. 

Mayor Pro Tem Keysor explained starting tonight the council meetings will be video recorded 

and available on the City’s website. Any citizens who would like to comment please go to the 

podium and state name, address, and your business. 

Brief Public Comment:  

Debra Struble stated she has been out of water for two weeks and City has not found the curb 

stop. 

Board Comment: 

Mayor Pro Tem Keysor: asked Patrick Muczynski to respond to Ms. Struble problem. 

Patrick Muczynski responded by stating in her particular case the location of her curb stop did 

not matter, but he did find a location across the street which could be used to thaw her pipes. 



Pro Tem Mayor Keysor stated the City should have prints from Wilcox that show the location of 

the curb stop. Pro Tem Mayor Keysor requested Patrick and Zack help Ms. Struble with her 

water problem. 

  

Brief Public Comment:  

Neil Fiekema discussed Gold Wing Touring Association, stated the association has been coming 

to Evart for 13 years, the association decided to renew contract for another 3 years. Mr. Fiekema 

invited another organization to the City of Evart called Michigan Gold Wing Road Riders having 

a membership of approximately 1,200 riders. Mr. Fiekema wanted to make Michigan Gold Wing 

Road Riders feel welcome in Evart. 

  

Board Comment: 

Pro Tem Mayor Keysor thanked Mr. Fiekema for the update. 

Brief Public Comment:  

Bill Bradley discussed one of his rental’s pipes froze. The cost was $210.00 to get the pipes 

thawed. Mr. Bradley stated the pipes are only 12 inches below the ground and most likely are to 

freeze again. Mr. Bradley requested a refund for running his water. 

Board Comment: 

Pro Tem Keysor asked City Manager application process for refund. 

City Manager, Szakacs, stated he is allowed to credit up to 100.00. Any amount above that must 

be approve by council. Szakacs stated that UB Clerk Jennie usually types a letter requesting 

council approve credit that exceed $100.00. 

Brief Public Comment:  

Rick Machleit stated he attended the last meeting and was told by City Manager Szakacs to go to 

City Hall for an application to get on the run water list. Mr. Machleit stated he spoke with the 

Treasurer and she stated approximately 50 people are on the water run list. Mr. Machleit asked 

for clarification to see if all residents were allowed the credit. 

Board Comment: 

Pro Tem Keysor asked City Manager Szakacs to respond. 



City Manager Szakacs stated there was a communication error. Szakacs stated if a resident 

would like to be added to the water run list, they must contact City Hall requesting to be added to 

the list. The Water Department would then investigate the request. 

Brief Public Comment:  

Joe Sinkler stated he assisted Mr. Bradley with thawing pipes at a resident and stated the meter 

was only 14 inches below ground. Mr. Sinkler stated people who go to City Hall requesting a 

discount are denied. 

Board Comment: 

Pro Tem Keysor asked if the residents asked for the application to be put on the water run list. 

City Manager Szakacs stated the last two years the City has suffered extreme harsh weather 

conditions. Szakacs said the City is advising residents to run their water as an insurance policy. 

Approval of the agenda: 

Pro Tem Mayor Keysor asked if there was any amendments to the agenda. 

City Manager Szakacs asked for Northern Pump and Well be added to new business. 

Moved by Elliott, seconded by Sherman to accept the agenda. Passed unanimously. 

  

Approval of the minutes: 

Pro Tem Mayor Keysor suggested the past approval of minutes be reviewed by all board 

members in detail. Councilman Elliott was requested by the board to review and resubmit for 

approval of all minutes on March 16, 2015. 

LDFA: Melora Theunick not in attendance 

DDA: Al Weinberg not in attendance 

Unfinished Business: 

DIGG GRANT: 

City Manager Szakacs, stated as of today the City has not received a response from the State of 

Michigan regarding the request for more funds towards the DIGG GRANT. Discussion was held. 

2015/2016 Budget Worksheet: 



City Manager Szakacs, stated budget is a work in progress. Szakacs stated he had a staff meeting 

last week to go over 2015-2016 Budget. The first draft of the budget will be in the packets on 

March 16, 2015. 

New Business: 

Loren Stieg: 

Loren Stieg stated he attended the council meeting in January regarding his utility bill. Mr. Stieg 

stated he was directed by this board to restrict his pipe from a 2 inch line to 1 ½ line. Mr. Stieg 

stated he put a choke on his line and it was not approved by the Water Department. Discussion 

was held. 

City Clerk Appointment:  

City Manager Szakacs, stated applications are due on March 11, 2015. Council can change 

schedule. Szakacs asked for guidance on interview process for clerk. 

Arbor Day Proclamation: 

Discussion was held. Moved by Foster, supported by Sherman. Passed unanimously. 

Northern Pump & Well: 

Received proposal for Well 6. Major issues with Well 6 including corrosion. Discussion was 

held. 

Moved by Foster, seconded by Sherman to approve the Northern Pump and Well proposal 

to repair Well 6 for $26,000.00. Passed unanimously. 

City Treasurer’s Report: 

Moved by Elliott, seconded by Sherman to approve the Vendor’s List. Passed unanimously. 

City Treasurer Dvoracek stated she met with BS&A last Thursday. BS&A will here March 30, 

2015 for 2 ½ weeks to install new software. 

  

City Manager’s Report: 

UB Clerk/Deputy Treasurer, Jennie Duncan is working with County Clerk, Karen Blum for the 

upcoming May election. County Clerk Blum agreed to oversee the City May election for a cost. 



City Manager, Szakacs, stated he met with Karen Higgins from Centennial Arms. Mrs. Higgins 

is concerned about the new ready to serve fees. City Manager Szakacs suggested Mrs. Higgins 

give him a proposal by April when council re-evaluates the water and sewer rates. 

City Manager Szakacs mentioned Ventra is also concerned about the sewer rates. Szakacs 

reiterated to Ventra council will revisit water and sewer rates after a six month period. 

DPW-transmission in Rick’s truck is up and running. City had to purchase a new turbo for 

another truck. The fuel injection is also fixed. The camel jet used to thaw broke down needs a 

$5,000.00 repair. Patrick Muczynski is working on getting some quotes for the camel jet repair. 

Szakacs spoke to Allan from Smith Lumber about ordering a portable restroom and the City 

paying for it because the sewer lines are frozen. 

Szakacs may authorize a $3,000.00 purchase for a router cutter for WWTP. 

Szakacs added there was a pipe break at the DPW building, City is working on filing the claim. 

Police Department: 

Szakacs reported Chief Backing was on vacation last week and everything is running smoothly. 

PD is running a background check on person the PD interviewed last week. Discussion was held. 

WWTP: 

Patrick Muczynski stated the WWTP has been busy thawing lines. Discussion was held. 

City Attorney Report: 

Mr. White is updating and drastically changing some police ordinances. A number of police 

issues are happening in the near future. 

Moved by Sherman, seconded by Foster to adjourn at 7:49 pm. 

 


